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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Exchange, built 1767-71, is a large two-story over elevated- 
basement brick structure of Georgian design. It has a hipped roof 
and three-bay wide projecting and pedimented central pavilions on 
the east and west elevations. The main architectural facade is the 
East Bay Street elevation. Here the central pavilion is flanked on 
either side by a two-story high Palladian window. The first floor 
of the pavilion contains three arched doorways and above, in the 
second story, are three tall rectangular windows. First floor open­ 
ings on the other three elevations are arched and second story 
windows are rectangular. The windows are of London crown glass, 
decorations of Portland stone, and the roof of Welsh Carnarvon slate. 
The building is 92 feet from north to south and 65*l.feet from east to 
west.

The Exchange has. undergone many changes over the years. About 1805 
land reclamation filled in the harbor to the east of the structure 
and the original waterfront setting was gone. At some uncertain 
date the original cupola disappeared and a substitute took its place 
in 1835; this was removed after being damaged in the 1886 earthquake.

Also probably lost during the earthquake was the roof parapet with 
large Portland stone urns, leaving the hipped roof appearing out of 
proportion. The west elevation lacks balance because of missing 
pilasters that may have come off when two flanking stair towers were 
removed. The projecting towers occupied the space through which East 
Bay Street now runs and it is certain that these stair towers were 
gone by 1827.

The basement, originally used as a customhouse has been restored 
and is exhibited as the 1780-82 British Provost Dungeon of the War 
for Independence. The 18th century interior plan of the upper two 
floors has been extensively altered and it now dates from around 
1818 when the building was adapted for use as a post office. On the 
first floor the center hall, which once extended all the way through 
the building, is now occupied on the west by a broad staircase. 
Behind this, on the east, a partition has been inserted to create a 
service or kitchen area. Two very large rooms, each running the full 
width of the building, occupy the north and south sides of the central 
hall. They are used as DAR meeting rooms.

The second floor Great Room, where the ball for George Washington was 
held in 1791 and where the government council met, is gone. It occupied 
a part of the building that was cut away to create space for the 19th 
century stairwell and landing. Existing 2nd floor rooms are arranged 
in a single tier that extends around the north, east, and south sides 
of the building and all rooms open on an inner balcony that also runs 
along the west wall. A number of these office rooms retain door 
frames and other particulars that date from the 19th century.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built in 1767-1771 the considerably altered Exchange and Provost 
building served during the last quarter of the 18th century as a 
customhouse, public market, public meeting place, military prison 
and barracks. Confiscated tea was stored here in 1774, and the 
Provincial Congress of South Carolina met here in the same year. 
From 1780 to 1782, during the War for Independence, the British used 
the Exchange as a barracks and military prison. President George 
Washington was welcomed on the steps of this building when he visited 
Charleston on his southern tour of 1791 and later a grand ball was 
given in his honor in the Exchange. The structure was badly damaged 
by Union artillery fire during the Civil War and again by the great 
earthquake of 1886. Repaired after each occasion the Exchange was 
used for Federal office purposes until 1913 when an act of Congress 
deeded the building to the Daughters of the American Revolution 
in and of the State of South Carolina to be preserved by them as a 
historical monument.

The Provost in the basement is open to visitors as a museum, the main 
floor rooms serve as a D.A.R. meeting place, and the office rooms on 
the second floor are vacant.

History

On December 3, 1773, a protest meeting was held in the Great Hall 
of this building against the tea tax and 257 chests of tea was stored 
and forcibly detained here in 1774. At a meeting held in the Exchange 
on July 6, 1774, a number of resolutions were adopted respecting the 
oppressive acts of the British Parliament. Deputies of the Colony 
of South Carolina were appointed to attend the First Continental 
Congress scheduled to meet at Philadelphia on September 1, 1774. 
This meeting also resolved to appoint 99 men as a general committee to 
correspond with similar committees of the other colonies.

After the British capture of Charleston, May 12, 1780, Royal troops 
were quartered in the Exchange. They failed to discover some 10,000 
pounds of powder hidden by General William Moultrie in a secret room 
located in the northeast corner of the basement. The central part 
of the basement, however, became a military prison. Known as the
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8. Significance (Continued) page 1

Provost, the British held many American Patriots here from August 1780 
to 1782.

In 1788, when the South Carolina State House in Charleston was destroyed 
by fire, the legislature met in the Exchange. In 1790 the building 
was also the setting of the meeting to ratify the new State Constitution. 
In May 1791, when President George Washington visited Charleston on 
his southern tour, he was offically greeted on the steps and later a 
grand ball was given in his honor in the Exchange. About 1805 land 
reclamation to the east destroyed forever the original waterfront 
setting of the building.

In 1818 the City of Charleston sold the Exchange to the Federal Government 
for $60,000. The building was used through most of the 19th century 
as a customhouse and post office. The structure was badly damaged by 
Union artillery fire during the Civil War and again by the great earth­ 
quake of 1886. Repaired after each occasion, the Exchange was used 
for Federal office purposes until 1913 when an act of Congress deeded 
the building to the Daughters of the American Revolution in and of 
the State of South Carolina to be preserved by them as a historical 
monument. Although the D.A.R. has held the deed to the Exchange since 
1917, the second floor rooms have been used from 1917 until 1970 as 
offices for various Federal Agencies. The Provost in the basement 
is open to visitors as a museum, the main floor rooms serve as a D.A.R. 
meeting place, and the office rooms on the second floor are vacant.
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